
  

 
Stayton City Council Agenda  Page 1 of 3 
February 5, 2018 

AGENDA 
STAYTON CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

Monday, February 5, 2018 
Stayton Community Center 

400 W. Virginia Street 
Stayton, Oregon  97383 

 
 
CALL TO ORDER   7:00 PM   Mayor Porter 
 
FLAG SALUTE 
 
ROLL CALL/STAFF INTRODUCTIONS 
 
ANNOUNCEMENTS – PLEASE READ CAREFULLY 
Items not on the agenda but relevant to City business may be discussed at this meeting. Citizens are encouraged to attend all 
meetings of the City Council to insure that they stay informed. Agenda items may be moved forward if a Public Hearing is 
scheduled. 
a. Additions to the agenda 
b. Declaration of Ex Parte Contacts, Conflict of Interest, Bias, etc.  
 
 
PRESENTATIONS/COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC 
Request for Recognition:  If you wish to address the Council, please fill out a green “Request for Recognition” form.  
Forms are on the table at the back of the room. Recommended time for presentation is 10 minutes. Recommended 
time for comments from the public is 3 minutes. 
a. North Santiam School Board Update 
b. Stayton Public Library Electronic Reader Board – Janna Moser, Library Director 
 
CONSENT AGENDA 
a. January 16, 2018 City Council Minutes 
 
 
Purpose of the Consent Agenda: 
In order to make more efficient use of meeting time, resolutions, minutes, bills, and other items which are routine in nature and 
for which no debate is anticipated, shall be placed on the Consent Agenda.  Any item placed on the Consent Agenda may be 
removed at the request of any council member prior to the time a vote is taken.  All remaining items of the Consent Agenda are 
then disposed of in a single motion to adopt the Consent Agenda.  This motion is not debatable.  The Recorder to the Council will 
then poll the council members individually by a roll call vote.  If there are any dissenting votes, each item on the consent Agenda 
is then voted on individually by roll call vote.  Copies of the Council packets include more detailed staff reports, letters, 
resolutions, and other supporting materials.  A citizen wishing to review these materials may do so at Stayton City Hall, 362 N. 
Third Avenue, Stayton, or the Stayton Public Library, 515 N. First Avenue, Stayton. 

The meeting location is accessible to persons with disabilities. A request for an interpreter for the hearing impaired or other 
accommodations for persons with disabilities should be made at least 48 hours prior to the meeting. If you require special 
accommodations contact Deputy City Recorder Alissa Angelo at (503) 769-3425. 



Stayton City Council Agenda Page 2 of 3 
February 5, 2018 

BUSINESS FROM THE MAYOR 
a. Committee and Commissions Appointments

• Budget Committee – Paige Hook
• Planning Commission – Paige Hook

b. Committee and Commissions Reappointments
• Public Safety Commission – Cari Sessums

PUBLIC HEARING – None  

UNFINISHED BUSINESS – None 

NEW BUSINESS 
PacifiCorp Franchise Hearing  Action 
a. Staff Report – Wallace Lien
b. Council Deliberation
c. Council Decision

STAFF/COMMISSION REPORTS – None 

PRESENTATIONS/COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC 
Recommended time for presentations is 10 minutes. 
Recommended time for comments from the public is 3 minutes. 

BUSINESS FROM THE CITY MANAGER 
a. 2018/19 FY Draft Budget Calendar

BUSINESS FROM THE COUNCIL 

FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS – February 20, 2018 
a. Transportation Master Plan
b. Total Compensation Study

ADJOURN



  

 
Stayton City Council Agenda  Page 3 of 3 
February 5, 2018 

CALENDAR OF EVENTS 
FEBRUARY 2018 

Monday February 5 City Council 7:00 p.m. Community Center (north end) 
Tuesday February 6 Parks & Recreation Board 6:30 p.m. E.G. Siegmund Meeting Room 
Friday February 9 Community Leaders 7:30 a.m. Covered Bridge Café 

Tuesday February 13 Commissioner’s Breakfast 7:30 a.m. Covered Bridge Café 
Monday February 19 CITY OFFICES CLOSED IN OBSERVANCE OF PRESIDENTS DAY HOLIDAY 
Tuesday February 20 City Council 7:00 p.m. Community Center (north end) 

Wednesday February 21 Library Board 6:00 p.m. E.G. Siegmund Meeting Room 
Thursday February 22 Pick Your Park -Mill Creek Park  6:00 p.m. Community Center 
Monday February 26 Planning Commission 7:00 p.m. Community Center (north end) 

MARCH 2018 
Monday March 5 City Council 7:00 p.m. Community Center (north end) 
Tuesday March 6 Parks & Recreation Board 6:30 p.m. E.G. Siegmund Meeting Room 
Friday March 9 Community Leaders 7:30 a.m. Covered Bridge Café 

Tuesday March 13 Commissioner’s Breakfast 7:30 a.m. Covered Bridge Café 
Monday March 19 City Council 7:00 p.m. Community Center (north end) 

Wednesday March 21 Library Board 6:00 p.m. E.G. Siegmund Meeting Room 
Monday March 26 Planning Commission 7:00 p.m. Community Center (north end) 

APRIL 2018 
Monday April 2 City Council 7:00 p.m. Community Center (north end) 
Tuesday April 3 Parks & Recreation Board 6:30 p.m. E.G. Siegmund Meeting Room 
Tuesday April 10 Commissioner’s Breakfast 7:30 a.m. Covered Bridge Café 
Friday April 13 Community Leaders 7:30 a.m. Covered Bridge Café 

Monday April 16 City Council 7:00 p.m. Community Center (north end) 
Wednesday April 18 Library Board 6:00 p.m. E.G. Siegmund Meeting Room 

Monday April 30 Planning Commission 7:00 p.m. Community Center (north end) 
MAY 2018 

Tuesday May 1 Parks & Recreation Board 6:30 p.m. E.G. Siegmund Meeting Room 
Monday May 7 Budget Committee 6:00 p.m. Community Center (north end) 
Monday May 7 City Council Upon Adjournment of Budget Committee 
Tuesday May 8 Commissioner’s Breakfast 7:30 a.m. Covered Bridge Café 
Friday May 11 Community Leaders 7:30 a.m. Covered Bridge Café 

Monday May 14 Budget Committee 6:00 p.m. Community Center (north end) 
Tuesday May 15 Budget Committee 6:00 p.m. Community Center (north end) 

Wednesday May 16 Budget Committee 6:00 p.m. Community Center (north end) 
Wednesday May 16 Library Board 6:00 p.m. E.G. Siegmund Meeting Room 

Monday May 21 City Council 7:00 p.m. Community Center (north end) 
Monday May 31 CITY OFFICES CLOSED IN OBSERVANCE OF MEMORIAL DAY HOLIDAY 
Tuesday May 29 Planning Commission 7:00 p.m. Community Center (north end) 
 



 
Stayton City Council Meeting Minutes          Page 1 of 4 
January 16, 2018 

City of Stayton 
City Council Meeting Action Minutes 

January 16, 2018 

LOCATION:  STAYTON COMMUNITY CENTER, 400 W. VIRGINIA STREET, STAYTON 

Time Start: 7:00 P.M.     Time End: 8:30 P.M. 

COUNCIL MEETING ATTENDANCE LOG 

COUNCIL STAYTON STAFF  
Mayor Henry Porter Alissa Angelo, Deputy City Recorder 
Councilor Priscilla Glidewell Keith Campbell, City Manager 
Councilor Mark Kronquist Dan Fleishman, Director of Planning & Development 
Councilor Christopher Molin Lance Ludwick, Public Works Director 
Councilor Brian Quigley  Janna Moser, Library Director 
Councilor Joe Usselman Rich Sebens, Chief of Police (excused) 
 Charles Button, Lieutenant 
  

 
AGENDA ACTIONS 

OATH OF OFFICE 
a. Oath Of Office For Councilor Christopher Molin 

 

 
Councilor Molin was sworn in by Ms. Angelo.  

REGULAR MEETING 
Announcements 
a. Additions to the Agenda 
b. Declaration of Ex Parte Contacts, Conflict of Interest, Bias, etc. 

 
None. 
Councilor Kronquist stated he owns property in 
the area of the proposed Vertical Housing 
Development Zone. However, he did not feel this 
would cause a bias for his decision. 
 

Presentations / Comments from the Public 
a. Dan Morgan 

 
 
 

b. Julie Bochsler 

 
Mr. Morgan spoke in favor of a teen center but 
expressed concerns about the location and 
proximity to a known drug house. 
 
Ms. Bocshler spoke in support of establishing a 
Vertical Housing Development Zone. 
 

Consent Agenda 
a. December 18, 2017 City Council Minutes 
b. Resolution No. 972, Extending City of Stayton’s Workers 

Compensation Coverage to Volunteers of the City of Stayton 

 
Motion from Councilor Kronquist, seconded by 
Councilor Quigley, to approve the Consent Agenda 
as presented. Motion passed 5:0. 
 

Public Hearing  
Ordinance No. 1015, Amending Land Use Code Regarding 
Standards for Awnings and the Color Palette for Buildings in the 
Downtown Zones 
a. Commencement of Public Hearing 

 
 
 
 
Mayor Porter opened the hearing at 7:19 p.m. 



 
Stayton City Council Meeting Minutes          Page 2 of 4 
January 16, 2018 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

b. Staff Report – Dan Fleishman 
 

c. Questions from the Council 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

d. Proponents’ Testimony 
 
 

 
 
 

e. Opponents’ Testimony 
f. Governmental Agencies 
g. General Testimony 

 
h. Questions from the Public 

 
 

i. Questions from the Council 
 
 

j. Staff Summary 
 

k. Close of Hearing 
 

l. Council Deliberation 
 

m. Council Decision on Ordinance No. 1015 

Councilor Glidewell stated she is a member of 
Friends of Old Town Stayton, but does not feel it 
will cause her any bias. Both Councilor Kronquist 
and Councilor Glidewell own property in the area. 
However, neither felt it would cause any bias in 
their decision.  
 
Mr. Fleishman reviewed the staff report. 
 
Council discussion with staff if these rules would 
apply to only new development in the downtown 
area. Mr. Fleishman explained the color palette 
applies to everyone in the downtown area seeking 
to paint their building. The other rules will apply 
on a case by case basis depending on changes 
proposed by the building owner. 
 
Further discussion of how many Friends of Old 
Town Stayton members own buildings in the 
downtown area.  
 
Steve Poisson, 1750 E. Pine Street, spoke in 
support of the proposed ordinance. 
 
Alan Meyer, 2764 E. Pine Street, spoke in support 
of the proposed ordinance. 
 
None. 
None. 
None. 
 
Julie Bochsler, 1660 Mt. Jefferson Drive, inquired if 
replacing the fabric awning with no alteration to 
the frame would require meeting the new 
requirements. Mr. Fleishman stated no, only if the 
frame was replaced or altered. 
 
Mr. Fleishman provided a brief summary. 
 
Mayor Porter closed the hearing at 7:39 p.m. 
 
None. 
 
Motion from Councilor Kronquist, seconded by 
Councilor Usselman, to approve Ordinance No. 
1015 as presented. Motion passed 5:0.  
 

Unfinished Business 
Proposed Resolution Establishing Residential Rental Registration 
Fee 
a. Staff Report – Dan Fleishman 

 
 
 
Mr. Fleishman reviewed his staff report.  



 
Stayton City Council Meeting Minutes          Page 3 of 4 
January 16, 2018 

b. Council Deliberation 
 
 

c. Council Decision 

Council discussion on history of rental issues and 
how the discussion of a fee came about. 
 
Motion from Councilor Glidewell, seconded by 
Councilor Kronquist, to approve Resolution No. 
969, as presented. Motion passed 4:1 (Quigley). 
 

New Business 
Appointment of Council President 
a. Staff Report – Alissa Angelo 

 
b. Council Discussion 

 
c. Council Decision 
 
 
 
 
Appointment of Council Liaisons to Boards and Committees 
a. Staff Report – Alissa Angelo 

 
b. Council Discussion 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Judicial Services Contract 
a. Staff Report – Alissa Angelo 

 
b. Council Discussion 

 
c. Council Decision 
 
 
 
 

 
 
Ms. Angelo briefly reviewed the staff report. 
 
None. 
 
Motion from Councilor Glidewell, seconded by 
Councilor Usselman, to reappoint Councilor 
Quigley as the Council President. Motion passed 
5:0. 
 
 
Ms. Angelo reviewed the current list of Council 
Liaisons for Boards and Committees.  Following 
discussion, Councilors agreed to serve as a Liaison 
as follows: 
 
• Adaptive Management Group – Councilor 

Glidewell 
• North Santiam School District Board – 

Councilor Kronquist  
• Parks and Recreation Board – Councilor 

Kronquist 
• Regional Transportation Advisory Committee 

(SRAC) – Mayor Porter 
• Library Board – Councilor Molin 
• Santiam Communications Council – Councilor 

Quigley 
• Public Safety Commission – Councilor 

Usselman 
• Marion County Veterans Task Force – 

Councilor Molin  
 
 
Ms. Angelo reviewed her staff report. 
 
None. 
 
Motion from Councilor Quigley, seconded by 
Councilor Glidewell, to approve the renewal and 
amendment of Municipal Court Judge Jonathan 
Clark’s contract as presented. Motion passed 5:0. 
 



 
Stayton City Council Meeting Minutes          Page 4 of 4 
January 16, 2018 

Supporting Downtown Development through Establishment of a 
Vertical Housing Development Zone 

a. Staff Report – Dan Fleishman 
 

b. Council Discussion 
 

 
 

c. Council Decision 

 
 
Mr. Fleishman reviewed his staff report.  
 
Council discussion of experience with vertical 
housing and the effect on an owner if a taxing 
agency opts out.  
 
The Council reached consensus to request staff 
begin the process of establishing a Vertical 
Housing Development Zone. 
 

Staff / Commission Reports  
Finance Department Report – Cindy Chauran & Elizabeth Baldwin 
a. December 2017 Monthly Finance Department Report 

 
Police Chief’s Report – Chief Rich Sebens 
a. December 2017 Statistical Report 
 
Public Works Director’s Report – Lance Ludwick 
a. December 2017 Operating Report  

 
 

Planning & Development Director’s Report – Dan Fleishman 
a. December 2017 Activities Report 
 
Library Director’s Report – Janna Moser  

a. December 2017 Activities 
 

 
 
No discussion. 
 
 
No discussion. 
 
 
Brief discussion of the recent announcement of 
the Army Corp of Engineers project at Detroit 
Lake.  
 
No discussion. 
 
 
Ms. Moser offered an invite to Brews, Bites, and 
Books at the Library on January 27th.  
 

Presentations / Comments from the Public None. 
Business from the City Manager None. 
Business from the Mayor None.  
Business from the Council None. 
Future Agenda Items – Monday, February 5, 2018 
a. Library Reader Board Presentation 
b. North Santiam School Board Update 
APPROVED BY THE STAYTON CITY COUNCIL THIS 5TH DAY OF FEBRUARY 2018, BY A ____ VOTE OF THE STAYTON CITY 
COUNCIL. 
 

Date:    By:   
  Henry A. Porter, Mayor 
 
Date:   Attest:   

 Keith D. Campbell, City Manager 
       
Date:  Transcribed by:        
   Alissa Angelo, Deputy City Recorder 



CITY OF STAYTON 
APPLICATION FOR COMMISSION/COMMITTEE 

 
 
 

NAME OF COMMISSION/COMMITTEE:   PLEASE CHECK ONE: 
          New Applicant 
          Application for reappointment 
 
Years resided in Stayton:    
 
PLEASE PRINT
 
Name               
 
Address    Home Ph#      
 
Email Address    Cell Ph#      
     
Occupation              
 
Place of Employment             
 
Business Address             
 
Phone       Email          
 
 
1. Please give a brief description of the experience or training that qualifies you for 

membership on this commission/committee.  (If you wish, you may attach a resume or other 
pertinent material.) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2. Why do you want to become a member of the above-mentioned commission/committee and 

what specific contribution would you hope to make? 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
PLEASE COMPLETE BOTH SIDES OF THIS APPLICATION 

 



3. Please list the community concerns related to this commission/committee that you would 
like to see addressed if you are appointed. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4. Briefly describe your present or past involvement in relevant community groups.  (Having no 

previous involvement will not disqualify you for appointment.) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5. Are you currently serving on any Advisory Boards, Commissions or Committees?  If so, 

which ones? 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6. How did you learn about this vacancy? 
 
   Our Website   Word of mouth             Other 
 
 
7. Are you employed by, have any business, contractual arrangements or family 

connections with programs having contractual agreements with the City that might be 
within the purview of the committee on which you are seeking appointment? 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Signature of Applicant         Date      

  
 
PLEASE RETURN TO: City of Stayton 

362 N. Third Avenue 
Stayton, OR 97383 

  
It is the policy of the City to comply with all federal and state statutes on equal employment opportunity.  This 
policy shall be applied without regard to any individual employee or job applicant’s sex, race, color, religion, 
national origin, ancestry, age, marital status, political affiliation, genetic information, veteran status or any 
other legally protected status per state and federal law. 

 
PLEASE COMPLETE BOTH SIDES OF THIS APPLICATION 





CITY OF STAYTON 
APPLICATION FOR COMMISSION/COMMITTEE 

 
 
 

NAME OF COMMISSION/COMMITTEE:   PLEASE CHECK ONE: 
          New Applicant 
          Application for reappointment 
 
Years resided in Stayton:    
 
PLEASE PRINT
 
Name               
 
Address    Home Ph#      
 
Email Address    Cell Ph#      
     
Occupation              
 
Place of Employment             
 
Business Address             
 
Phone       Email          
 
 
1. Please give a brief description of the experience or training that qualifies you for 

membership on this commission/committee.  (If you wish, you may attach a resume or other 
pertinent material.) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2. Why do you want to become a member of the above-mentioned commission/committee and 

what specific contribution would you hope to make? 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
PLEASE COMPLETE BOTH SIDES OF THIS APPLICATION 

 

Planning commission 
✔

Paige Hook 

2088 Quail Run Ave N/A

Mrs.paigehook@gmail.com 503-507-4704

Executive Assistant 

State of Oregon 

500 Summer St NE, Salem, OR

503-793-2533 Paige.k.hook@state.or.us

I have a bachelors degree, experience in managing projects, and have training in
crime analysis which takes a high level of analytical skill and cartography and GIS
courses. I also have experience in keeping meetings moving forward.

5

I want to become a member of this committee, because I care about our community, and want to be a part of the discussion and decisions on how we develop and
grow. I want to help advocate for all citizens and make sure processes aren't rushed, yet topics are kept moving to respect each member's time. I want to take the
time when needed to ask some or all of the following questions:
Why are we doing this?
Is it legal?
Is it helpful?
Does it support the small town, welcoming feel of our community?
Is there a way to reduce the cost?
Is it necessary or improve livability?
Is it fair?
How will it affect residents?
How will it affect small businesses?
How will it affect traffic?
What other future implications of this decision might there be?
What precedent might we be setting?
What are two alternatives we could consider?



3. Please list the community concerns related to this commission/committee that you would 
like to see addressed if you are appointed. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4. Briefly describe your present or past involvement in relevant community groups.  (Having no 

previous involvement will not disqualify you for appointment.) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5. Are you currently serving on any Advisory Boards, Commissions or Committees?  If so, 

which ones? 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6. How did you learn about this vacancy? 
 
   Our Website   Word of mouth             Other 
 
 
7. Are you employed by, have any business, contractual arrangements or family 

connections with programs having contractual agreements with the City that might be 
within the purview of the committee on which you are seeking appointment? 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Signature of Applicant         Date      

  
 
PLEASE RETURN TO: City of Stayton 

362 N. Third Avenue 
Stayton, OR 97383 

  
It is the policy of the City to comply with all federal and state statutes on equal employment opportunity.  This 
policy shall be applied without regard to any individual employee or job applicant’s sex, race, color, religion, 
national origin, ancestry, age, marital status, political affiliation, genetic information, veteran status or any 
other legally protected status per state and federal law. 

 
PLEASE COMPLETE BOTH SIDES OF THIS APPLICATION 

✔

I am not.

I do not have any specific experience in city planning groups, but I am an active
Rotarian, and am currently managing a nonpartisan campaign in a neighboring city.

Community members including small and large business owners and our residents, deserve a
wonderful place to work, play, learn, and live. Our governmental bodies and boards are entrusted
with the planning, development, and growth of our city. This includes incorporating the voices of
our citizens, improving livability, advocating for our vulnerable populations, and supporting our
environment by making smart decisions in energy and design of our expanding city. I would like
to be sure we are addressing the previous questions stated in #2 wherever possible to ensure
we are planning for the current citizens and future generations in the best way we can.

I do not believe so. I do work for the state of Oregon, but it is not in a section that
deals with city planning. I work for the health authority.

1/23/2018







CITY OF STAYTON

M E M O R A N D U M

TO: Mayor Henry A. Porter and the Stayton City Council

FROM: Wallace W. Lien, Special Counsel

DATE: January 31, 2018

SUBJECT: PacifiCorp Franchise Hearing

This matter comes before the Council pursuant to the terms of the Franchise Agreement
with PacifiCorp for the use of city rights of way for the provision of electric power to the
citizens of Stayton.  The Franchise Agreement is attached hereto as Exhibit A.  Staff has alleged
PacifiCorp has violated and breached the Franchise Agreement by failing to move certain power
poles to accommodate the city’s stormwater drainage project and street widening project on
Kindle Way, and PacifiCorp has denied it has violated or breached the Franchise.  The purpose
of this hearing is for the Council to resolve the issue.

1.  Background Facts

The City has been planning and implementing its new storm water detention facility and
street widening project north of Kindle Way for the last year.  The project involves the purchase,
rezoning and annexation of land by the City for the purpose of creating a new regional storm
water detention facility and adjoining public park.  Included in this project are certain street
improvements necessary, and construction of storm water piping and ditching to feed the new
detention facility.  Improvements to Kindle Way to collector status are mandated by the
Transportation Systems Plan, and are being paid for from City Transportation SDC funds.

Early on in the project, staff and designers identified that certain PacifiCorp power poles
would need to be moved in order to accommodate the new City project.  Those poles that need to
be moved are identified in the attached drawing marked as Exhibit B.  A total of 10 power poles
are involved at this time beginning at the intersection of Shaff Road and Kindle Way (Pole #1),
and running north along Kindle Way to its intersection with Junco Street.  (Poles #2-10).

Pole #1 is a high voltage transmission pole that has to have special treatment in the move. 
Poles #2-10 are normal power poles and require nothing extra in order to move.  The current
project planning requires Pole #1 to be moved to the northeast to the edge of the new Shaff Road
right of way.  It will remain an above ground pole.  Poles #2-10 will be moved and placed
underground along the eastern edge of the Kindle Way right of way.  The City has the
responsibility for the trenching, and laying the vaults and conduit in order to get the power lines
underground, but it is the responsibility of PacifiCorp to remove the poles, run the wire inside

Staff Report – Pacificorp Franchise Page 1 of 7 

Council Meeting of February 5, 2018



the conduit and make the electrical connections.  The City’s underground obligation is a part of
the project budget, and will be paid for with City Transportation SDC funds.

Section 4.12.030(3)(a)(iv) of the Franchise Agreement provides that in cases of capital
improvement projects undertaken by the City, PacifiCorp shall at its expense convert existing
overhead distribution facilities to underground.  The detention and street project involved here
are a capital improvement project of the City.  PacifiCorp in this situation is allowed to be
reimbursed for the costs of conversion from ratepayers pursuant to OAR 860-22-0046.

Section 4.12.040(2) of the Franchise Agreement regarding relocation of facilities
provides that PacifiCorp shall, at its expense, relocate any of its equipment or facilities that are
required to promote the public interest of the City by reason of traffic conditions, public safety,
street construction, installation of storm sewer lines, or any other type of structures or public
improvements by City. 

On June 8, 2017, the City sent an official written demand to have PacifiCorp move the
poles.  On June 26, 2017, PacifiCorp, through Eddie Steiner advised the City that PacifiCorp
refused to move pole #1 because it was, or had been, in a private easement.  At this point Mr.
Steiner had no issue with the moving of poles #2-10. Upon being advised that the City did not
agree with that assessment, and continued its demand to have the affected poles moved, the
attorney for PacifiCorp, sent an email to the Acting City Attorney on October 23, 2017 affirming
that the position of PacifiCorp was that the franchise obligation to move the poles did not apply
where PacifiCorp had a prior private easement.  Thereafter on November 1, 2017, Mr. Steiner
advised the City that PacifiCorp had discovered that poles #2-10 were, or had been, in a private
easement, therefore PacifiCorp was refusing to move those poles as well.

Staff originally advised all utility providers that utilities from the intersection of Shaff
Road and Kindle Way would have to move their facilities by December 31, 2017.  Northwest
Natural Gas, Stayton Telephone and Wave Cable have all agreed to move their facilities at their
own expense, and Staff anticipates that all those moves will be fully accomplished by June 1,
2018.

Annexation of the subject property has now been accomplished, and the stormwater
detention project needs to proceed as soon as practical.  Staff believes it is necessary to have the
affected power poles moved by June 1, 2018 in order to keep the detention/street project on
schedule for completion before the end of 2018.

2.  The Hearing Process

Section 4.12.070(8)(b) of the Franchise Agreement provides for a public hearing to be
held to resolve this matter.  That section reads as follows:

PacifiCorp shall be afforded due process and provided with an opportunity to be
heard at a public hearing before the City Council prior to the termination of the
franchise. The City Council shall hear any persons interested therein, and shall
determine, in its discretion, whether or not any failure, refusal, or neglect by
PacifiCorp has occurred.

Staff Report – Pacificorp Franchise Page 2 of 7 

Council Meeting of February 5, 2018



This form of public hearing allows the presentation of evidence and argument by the parties in
order to fully inform the Council prior to making its final determination.

The order of presentation of the hearing will be as follows:

Staff Report
Questions of Staff by Council
Presentation by PacifiCorp
Questions of PacifiCorp by Council
Rebuttal by Staff
Deliberations by Council

This hearing is not a land use hearing, and the formalities of a land use hearing do not apply. 
Any relevant evidence and argument should be received and considered.  There are no automatic
rules for continuance of the hearing, although Council always has the right to continue a hearing
on its own Motion.

Upon making a decision, staff will draft an Order manifesting the Council decision,
including findings of fact, and will bring the Order to Council at the next Council meeting for
final adoption.

3.  Breach of Franchise Agreement

PacifiCorp’s refusal to comply with the Franchise Agreement in moving the affected
power poles for a City project amounts to a breach thereof as hereinafter explained.

PacifiCorp’s sole reason for refusing to comply with the mandates of the Franchise
Agreement is that the poles are, or had been previously authorized by a private easement
extended to PacifiCorp by local property owners.

However, there is no language in the Franchise Agreement that gives PacifiCorp an
exemption to compliance because the affected poles were under a prior private easement.  There
is one exception (for service drops) to that rule, but it does not apply in this case.  

Without specific language in the Franchise Agreement that would give PacifiCorp the
right to be exempt from the moving requirements for a City project, no such right exists.  This
Franchise Agreement is specific, and the rights and obligations of the parties are stated fully and
completely therein.  For rights to exist, they must be negotiated, agreed to and written into the
Franchise Agreement.  None of that has happened for a private easement exemption.

Staff interprets the Franchise Agreement to provide for no such exception.  The Franchise
Agreement actually requires PacifiCorp to follow the mandates of the Franchise Agreement even
when an easement is involved.  Section 4.12.010(3)(h) of the Agreement defines an Easement as
a public right-of-way, private utility easement on private or public property, or public utility
easement on public or private property but not including a private utility easement for a
customer's service drop.  There is nothing in this language that exempts PacifiCorp performance
for anything other than a service drop, which is not the situation here.

Staff Report – Pacificorp Franchise Page 3 of 7 

Council Meeting of February 5, 2018



Section 4.12.040(1)(a) Use of Public Ways (Excavation and Restoration) of the Franchise
Agreement provides that PacifiCorp shall comply with all applicable ordinances, municipal
codes, rules or regulations that may pertain to its activities within easements, public places and
public rights-of-way of the City.  This language supports the Staff’s interpretation that
PacifiCorp is obligated to move the affected poles even when those poles were at some prior
time located within a private easement.

Further support for the staff’s position is provided by Section 4.12.040(1)(b) of the
Franchise Agreement which provides that all structures, lines, and equipment erected by
PacifiCorp within the City shall be located so as to cause minimum interference, with the proper
use of city streets.  There is no limitation or exception here for prior private easements.  This
provision is clear that if PacifiCorp has equipment within the City, and that equipment is located
in such a manner as to cause interference with the proper use of a street within the City,
PacifiCorp falls out of compliance with the Franchise Agreement.

Section 4.12.040(2) of the Franchise Agreement regarding relocation of facilities
provides that PacifiCorp shall, at its expense, relocate any of its equipment or facilities that are
required to promote the public interest of the City by reason of traffic conditions, public safety,
street construction, installation of storm sewer lines, or any other type of structures or public
improvements by City.  This provision also contains no exemption for prior private easements,
and is clear language that PacifiCorp has the obligation to relocate its poles when such is needed
due to traffic conditions, new street construction and installation of storm sewer facilities.

Subsection 4.12.040(2)(d) goes on to state that if PacifiCorp fails to comply with any
requirement of the City pursuant to this section, the City may remove or relocate the facilities at
PacifiCorp's expense, unless said removal or relocation would be in violation of any portions of
ORS 757.800 and ORS 757.805.  These ORS citations are to high voltage power lines and apply
only to Pole #1, which will be further discussed below as to remedies.

Section (2)(b) of 4.12.040 of the Franchise Agreement requires the City to give
PacifiCorp a written request to relocate the poles.  That request was made on June 8, 2018. 
PacifiCorp was given until January 31, 2018 to enter into a formal agreement for it to move the
affected poles.  No such agreement has been forthcoming.

It is the Staff’s position that PacifiCorp is in material breach of the Franchise Agreement
by its repeated refusal to move the affected power poles.

4.  Fiscal Impact

The approximate cost of moving Pole #1 is between $75,000 and $100,000 because it is a
high voltage transmission line pole.  This pole would remain an above ground pole, and has to be
moved by PacifiCorp.

The approximate cost of moving Poles #2-10 is $165,000.   The City is responsible for
placing the moved lines underground, regardless of who is responsible for moving the poles. 
The City’s cost for trenching, vaults and conduit for Poles #2-10 is approximately $55,000.  

Staff Report – Pacificorp Franchise Page 4 of 7 

Council Meeting of February 5, 2018



The total cost for moving all 10 poles involved in this case is between $240,000 and
$265,000, of which the City is responsible for approximately $55,000, leaving the amount
remaining for moving the poles at between $185,000 and 210,000, which is the responsibility of
PacifiCorp.  

If the decision is that PacifiCorp must move the poles, there is no fiscal impact to the
City, as the cost of the move will be borne by PacifiCorp, except for the cost of under-grounding
which the City is responsible for in either event.  If the decision is that there is an implied
exemption in the Franchise Agreement to exempt compliance when the poles were located in a
prior easement, then the fiscal impact to the City would be a cost of $240,000-$265,000
additional for the detention/street project.

5.  Remedies

According to Section 4.12.070(6) the City has all the remedies available to it under the
Franchise Agreement, as well as all remedies available at law or in equity.

Upon a finding of a violation of a material provision of the Franchise Agreement, the
City has the following remedies available to it under that Agreement:

A. Revoke and terminate the Franchise Agreement.  Section 4.12.070(7); or

B. In lieu of revocation, the City may assess a penalty of $240 per day for breach without
just cause.  The penalty would begin on January 1, 2018, as that is the date given by Staff
for the work to be completed.  Since it was not completed, the penalty would run for
every day from January 1, 2018 until the work is completed.  Section 4.12.070(9)(a);
and/or

C. The City may mandate PacifiCorp move Pole #1, and underground Poles #2-10 at its
expense no later than June 1, 2018. Section 4.12.040(2)(a); or

D. The City may elect to undertake the move of Poles #2-10, and assess the costs thereof
back against PacifiCorp, and mandate that PacifiCorp move Pole #1 (because it is a high
voltage transmission line, according to the ORS 757.800 and 757.805, because of the
liability associated with high voltage lines, only PacifiCorp should be the one to move it).
Section 4.12.040(2)(d).

6.  Staff Recommendation

It is Staff’s position that the Franchise Agreement provides the rules and regulations that
govern the provision of electrical power in the City.  There is nothing in the Franchise
Agreement that even remotely suggests that the provisions of the Franchise Agreement do not
apply when there is a prior easement for the location of a power facility unless that easement is
for a service drop.  Staff believes that if the Franchise Agreement were intended to allow such an
exemption, it would have been specifically written into the Agreement and not left up to
interpretation.

Staff Report – Pacificorp Franchise Page 5 of 7 

Council Meeting of February 5, 2018



Easements are between PacifiCorp and private property owners, and have nothing to do
with the City.  That an easement once existed for the location of a power pole means nothing
when the adjacent right of way is expanded by the City to upgrade a street, leaving the easement
location of the pole in the middle of the street.  The entire relocation of pole provisions in the
Franchise Agreement are intended to prevent that situation from happening.  Where the pole
movement is caused by private development, PacifiCorp can recoup its costs from the private
developer.  However when the pole movement is caused by a city initiated and funded capital
improvement project, the obligation to move the poles lies with PacifiCorp.  That cost is either
assumed as a cost of the franchise, or may be passed on to the ratepayers consistent with OAR
860-22-0046.

It is assumed that many, if not most, established power poles were originally placed
pursuant to an easement granted by a private property owner.  Should the Franchise Agreement
be interpreted in such a way as to exempt poles placed under a private easement, the portion of
the Franchise Agreement governing relocation would essentially be meaningless.  The precedent
to be set here has an enormous long term impact on the City as it grows and undertakes new
capital improvement street projects.

Staff is not advocating for a revocation of the Franchise Agreement, only compliance
with the terms of that Agreement.  Staff further believes that the private easement argument
proffered by PacifiCorp is without just cause given the clear language of the Franchise
Agreement.  PacifiCorp’s repeated failure from June 2017 through the current period to agree to
move the poles at its expense constitutes a material breach of the Franchise Agreement.

Staff recommends that In lieu of revocation, the City assess a penalty of $240 per day,
beginning January 1, 2018 and continuing until such time as an agreement is reached for
PacifiCorp to move Poles #1-10, and in addition, to mandate that PacifiCorp move Pole #1, and
underground Poles #2-10 at its expense no later than June 1, 2018.

Options Available to the Council

1. I move that the City find PacifiCorp in breach/violation of its Franchise Agreement
(Ordinance 939) for its repeated refusal, without just cause, to move Poles #1-10 at its
expenses to allow for the City’s capital improvement project to construct a new storm
water detention facility and to bring Kindle Way up to collector standards as required by
the Transportation Systems Plan.  A penalty of $240 per day, beginning January 1, 2018
and continuing until such time as an agreement is reached for PacifiCorp to move Poles
#1-10 shall be assessed.  In addition, PacifiCorp is mandated to move Pole #1, and
underground Poles #2-10 at its expense (less the City’s obligation for under-grounding) 
with said work being completed no later than June 1, 2018.  Staff shall prepare an Order
with findings of fact commensurate with this decision and bring it to the next Council
meeting for adoption.

2. I move that the City interpret its Franchise Agreement (Ordinance 939) to include therein
an exemption to the relocation requirements for each situation in which a pole was
originally located within a private easement.  For those circumstances, PacifiCorp would
not be responsible for any cost of moving poles, even where the need for the move is

Staff Report – Pacificorp Franchise Page 6 of 7 

Council Meeting of February 5, 2018



caused by a City initiated capital improvement project.  With this interpretation,
PacifiCorp is not in violation of the Franchise Agreement, and has no financial obligation
to move Poles #1-10.  Staff shall prepare an Order with findings of fact commensurate
with this decision and bring it to the next Council meeting for adoption.

Staff Report – Pacificorp Franchise Page 7 of 7 

Council Meeting of February 5, 2018



ORDINANCE NO. 939 

AN ORDINANCE GRANTING A NONEXCLUSIVE ELECTRIC UTILITY 
FRANCHISE TO PACIFICORP, AN OREGON CORPORATION, DOING BUSINESS 
AS PACIFIC POWER & LIGHT COMPANY, AND FIXING TERMS, CONDITIONS, 
AND COMPENSATION OF SUCH FRANCHISE. 

WHEREAS, The City of Stayton, through Ordinance No. 835, granted a twenty year 
non-exclusive franchise to Pacific Power & Light Company to operate an electric power utility 
system within the City of Stayton; 

WHEREAS, subsequent to the granting of said franchise, Pacific Power & Light 
Company became an assumed business name ofPacifiCorp; 

WHEREAS, Pacific Power & Light Company and/or PacifiCorp have continuously 
operated said franchise throughout the term granted by the franchise; 

WHEREAS, PacifiCorp desires to continue the operation of its electric power utility 
system within the City of Stayton through a renewed franchise agreement; and, 

WHEREAS, the City of Stayton deems it appropriate that a successor franchise be 
granted to PacifiCorp, an Oregon Corporation also known as Pacific Power & Light Co, which 
reflects the current state of the electric power industry. 

NOW, THEREFORE, the Stayton City Council does ordain as follows: 

4.12.010 INTRODUCTION 

1. Statement of Intent and Purpose. The City of Stayton intends, by the granting of this 
franchise, to authorize the continued development and operation of an electric utility 
system to serve the citizens of Stayton. Such development can contribute significantly 
to meeting the electrical needs and desires of many individuals, associations, and 
institutions in the City. 

2. Short Title. This Ordinance shall be known as the PacifiCorp (Pacific Power & Light 
Co.) Franchise Ordinance. Within this document, it shall also be referred to as "this 
franchise" or "the franchise". 

3. Definitions. For the purpose of the ordinance, the following terms shall have the 
meaning given herein. 

a. Administrator: The City Administrator of the City of Stayton, or such person as 
may be designated by the City Administrator for the administration of this 
franchise. 

Ordinance No. 939 
Granting Nonexclusive Electric Utility Franchise to PacitiCorp 
September 06, 2011 

Page 1 of 24 



b. Bridge: Includes a structure erected within the City to facilitate the crossing of a 
river, stream, ditch, ravine, or other place. 

c. Conduit: An electrical raceway for the enclosure of electrical conductors and 
may consist of rigid conduit of electrical metallic tubing or plastic tubing. 

d. City: The City of Stayton, Oregon, and the area within its boundaries including 
its boundaries as extended in the future and all property owned by the City, 
outside City limits. It means all officers, employees, and representatives of the 
City of Stayton. 

e. City Council: The legislative body ofthe City. 

f. Customer Base: The total number of individual customers in any given year 
within the City. 

g. Distribution Facilities: Electric facilities of up to 35,000 kilovolts used for the 
delivery of electric power and energy to customers. 

h. Easement: Public right-of-way, private utility easement on private or public 
property, or public utility easement on public or private property but not 
including a private utility easement for a customer's service drop. 

1. Franchise Territory: The area within the legal boundaries of City, and all 
property owned by City outside its boundaries and includes areas annexed 
during the tem1 of franchise. 

J. Gross Revenue: Revenues derived from the sale of electricity or from the use, 
rental or lease of PacifiCorp's operating facilities other than residential-type 
space and water heating equipment within City allowed by law to be included 
within the term "Gross Revenue", after deducting therefrom any amounts paid 
by PacifiCorp to the United States or to the State of Oregon as excise, 
occupation, or business taxes upon the sale or distribution of electric service in 
City and after deducting net uncollectibles. Gross Revenues shall not include 
proceeds from the sale of bonds, mortgage or other evidence of indebtedness, 
securities or stocks, sales at wholesale by one utility to another when the utility 
purchasing the service is not the ultimate customer, or revenue from joint pole 
use. 

k. May: Is permissive. 

1. PacifiCorp: PacifiCorp, an Oregon corporation doing business as Pacific Power 
& Light Company, its successors, transferees, legal representatives, employees, 
contractors, subcontractors, agents, or assigns. 

Ordinance No. 939 
Granting Nonexclusive Electric Utility Franchise to PacifiCorp 
September 06, 20 I I 

Page 2 of 24 



m. 

n. 

o. 

p. 

q. 

r. 

s. 

t. 

4.12.020 

Person: Includes an individual, corporation, statutory entity (LLC, 
intergovernmental agency, etc.), firm, partnership, and joint stock company. 

Public Place: Includes any City owned or leased park, place, facility, or grounds 
within the City that is open to the public, but does not include a street or bridge. 

Public Rights-of-Way: Includes, but is not limited to streets, roads, highways, 
bridges, alleys, sidewalks, trails, paths, parking strips, public easement on 
private property, and all other public ways or areas, including subsurface and air 
space over these areas. 

Shall: Is mandatory. 

State: The State of Oregon 

Street: includes the surface, the air space about the surface, and the area below 
the surface of any public street, alley, avenue, road, boulevard, thoroughfare, or 
public highway, and other public rights-of-way, including public utility 
easements, but does not include a bridge or public place. 

Technical Facilities or Facilities: All real property, equipment, and fixtures used 
by PacifiCorp in the distribution of its services through its system. 

Volumetric: A method of computing franchise fees based on the volume of 
electricity sold or transmitted through PacifiCorp facilities within the City. 

GRANT OF AUTHORITY AND GENERAL PROVISIONS 

1. Grant of Authority. Subject to the conditions and reservations contained in this 
ordinance, City hereby grants to PacifiCorp, the right, privilege and franchise to: 

a. Own, construct, expand, upgrade, maintain, and operate an electric utility system 
within the City. 

b. Install, maintain, and operate on, over, or under the streets, bridges, and public 
places approved by City, facilities for the transmission and distribution of 
electricity to be distributed to City and to its inhabitants and to other customers 
and territory beyond the limits of City. This franchise does not limit 
PacifiCorp's ability to provide other utility services such as telecommunications 
and cable television, but does not allow PacifiCorp to provide these services 
under this franchise. PacifiCorp shall be required to enter into separate franchise 
agreements for these services at the sole discretion of City. 

Ordinance No. 939 
Granting Nonexclusive Electric Utility Franchise to PacifiCorp 
September 06, 20 11 

Page 3 of 24 



2. Duration. Renewal, and Renegotiation. This franchise ordinance and the rights and 
privileges granted herein shall take effect on or before thirty (30) days after the date this 
ordinance is passed by the City and remain in effect until October 6, 2021 unless 
reopened sooner under the provisions of Section 4.12.060.l.e or .f, or terminated sooner 
under the provisions of Section 4.12.070.7. Notwithstanding the foregoing, City and 
PacifiCorp shall retain the right, upon sixty (60) days advance written notice to the other 
party, to reopen and renegotiate any provision of this franchise at any time during or 
after the fifth year of the term of the franchise. All tenns of the franchise must be 
unconditionally accepted by PacifiCorp in writing, signed by an authorized officer of 
the corporation, within thirty (30) days after the date this ordinance is passed by City; 
and if PacifiCorp fails to do so, this ordinance shall be void. 

3. Franchise Nonexclusive. This franchise is not exclusive and shall not be construed as a 
limitation on the City in: 

a. 

b. 

4.12.030 

Granting rights, privileges, and authority to other persons similar to, or different 
from, those granted by this ordinance. 

Constructing, installing, maintaining or operating any City owned public utility, 
including but not limited to an electric power and light utility system. 

SERVICE STANDARDS 

1. Continuous Service. PacifiCorp shall maintain and operate an electric power utility 
system in the City that conforms to the standards of the National Electric Safety Code. 
PacifiCorp shall use due diligence to maintain continuous and unintenupted service 
which shall conform at least to the standards adopted by the State and Federal 
authorities, and to standards of City which are not in conflict with those adopted by the 
State and Federal authorities. Under no circumstances is PacifiCorp liable to City for an 
interruption or failure of service caused by acts of God, unavoidable accident, or other 
circumstances beyond the control ofPacifiCorp through no fault of its own. 

2. Emergency Repair Service. PacifiCorp shall maintain emergency repair service 
available to City customers on a twenty-four (24) hours per day, seven (7) days per 
week basis. Such emergency service shall be easily reached by phone during normal 
business hours and through an answering service at all other times. PacifiCorp shall at 
all times during the course of this franchise meet or exceed the customer commitment 
and performance standards as established by PacifiCorp and City and by this reference 
are incorporated herein. PacifiCorp shall designate these emergency repair facilities as 
a priority and provide all necessary information and assistance to resolve the emergency 
as soon as possible. 

3. Provision of Service Standards. PacifiCorp will at all times maintain the following 
service standards. 

a. Underground Extension of System. 

Ordinance No. 939 
Granting Nonexclusive Electric Utility Franchise to PacifiCorp 
September 06, 20 II 

Page 4 of 24 

LLudwick
Highlight



i. In cases of new construction or where utilities are to be placed 
underground, or service to newly created lots, which shall be 
underground in accordance with standards of the Stayton Municipal 
Code, the developer or property owner shall give PacifiCorp reasonable 
notice of such construction or development, including a copy of any final 
plat, and of the particular date on which open trenching will be available 
for PacifiCorp's installation of conduit, pedestals and/or vaults, and 
laterals to be provided at PacifiCorp's expense, in accordance with PUC 
OR No. 34, Rule 13. PacifiCorp shall also provide to City specifications 
as needed for trenching. 

ii. Costs of trenching and easements required to bring service to the 
development shall be borne by the developer or property owner as 
provided in PacifiCorp's Tariff Rule 13 as approved by the Oregon 
Public Utility Commission. Written notice must be given to PacifiCorp 
five (5) working days before trenches are available. 

iii. It shall be the policy of City to encourage all utilities, including 
PacifiCorp, to place overhead distribution facilities underground. 
PacifiCorp has a right to collect costs of undergrounding in a manner 
consistent with its tariffs, Oregon statutes, and Oregon Public Utility 
Commission regulations. It is also the policy of City to encourage co
location of utilities in common underground facilities. PacifiCorp shall 
make its best effort to satisfy City's policy. 

iv. In cases of capital improvement projects undertaken by City, 
PacifiCorp shall convert existing overhead distribution facilities to 
underground, so long as PacifiCorp is allowed to collect the incremental 
costs associated with the conversion from overhead to underground 
distribution facilities consistent with OAR 860-22-0046, the Oregon 
Public Utility Commission rule on forced conversion. 

v. PacifiCorp shall remove idle overhead facilities within a reasonable 
time. 

b. In the event a utility or person vacates or abandons a pole or facility, the utility 
or person shall provide written notification at least thilty (30) business days prior 
to vacation or abandonment of such pole or facility to City and all other utilities 
or persons sharing the pole through a joint use agreement. Affected utilities 
shall be provided a grace period of thi1ty (30) business days following the date 
of pole vacation or abandonment in which to remove their facilities. If facilities 

·have not been removed within the thiliy (30) day grace period, City may have 
the facilities removed at the expense of the owner of the facilities. 

Ordinance No. 939 
Granting Nonexclusive Electric Utility Franchise to PacifiCorp 
September 06, 20 11 

Page 5 of 24 

LLudwick
Highlight



c. PacifiCorp shall operate its electric utility system authorized by this ordinance 
twenty-four (24) hours per day, seven (7) days per week. 

d. PacifiCorp shall repair and maintain all existing and future street lights within 
the City at no cost to City in accordance with the established service standards 
and policies of PacifiCorp and City. Additionally, PacifiCorp shall provide the 
necessary materials and service to add additional street lighting as deemed 
necessary by City. City shall pay power costs for all street lights. 

e. PacifiCorp shall provide, at no cost to City, based on applicable tariff rate plan 
selected by City, the repair and maintenance of street lights within the franchise 
jurisdiction and in accordance with the most cunent Street Light Master Plan 
jointly developed by PacifiCorp and City. Repair and maintenance shall include, 
but not be limited to, all labor and materials necessary to repair and maintain all 
street lights in good working order. 

f. PacifiCorp shall perform periodic inspection and maintenance to street lights to 
ensure proper and consistent operation of street lights. In addition, City may 
request PacifiCorp to inspect and repair any street lights not in good working 
order. PacifiCorp shall respond to City's request for repair within seventy-two 
(72) hours (three working days), of receipt of such request and make repairs 
necessary to street lights within ten (10) days (ten-working days) upon request. 
In the event PacifiCorp fails to meet either request and/or repair time, City shall 
deduct monthly a pro-rated portion of cost of street lights from PacifiCorp 
invoice based on quantity of street lights reported and not repaired. 

4. Safety Standards and Work Specifications. 

a. PacifiCorp shall at all times keep and maintain all of its poles, fixtures, conduits, 
wires, and its entire system in a good state of repair and shall at all times conduct 
its operations under this franchise, including installation, constmction or 
maintenance of its facilities, in a safe and well-maintained manner so as not to 
present a danger to the public or City. 

b. The location, construction, extension, installation, maintenance, removal, and 
relocation ofthe facilities ofPacifiCorp shall conform to: 

Ordinance No. 939 

i. The requirements of the State and Federal statutes and regulations in 
force at the time of such work. 

ii. Such reasonable specifications in force at the time of such work, as 
City may from time to time adopt. 

iii. All installations, reanangements, removals, lowering or raising of 
aerial electric utilities, wiring, or other apparatus shall be done in 

Page 6 of 24 
Granting Nonexclusive Electric Utility Franchise to PacifiCorp 
September 06, 20 I I 



conformance with the requirements of the National Electric Safety Code, 
the laws of the State of Oregon, all Oregon Public Utility Commission 
rules and all ordinances and municipal codes of City. 

iv. For the purpose of carrying out Section 4.12.030.4, City may provide 
such specification relating thereto as may be necessary or convenient for 
public safety or the orderly development of City. City may reasonably 
amend and add to such specifications from time to time. 

v. PacifiCorp shall remove graffiti pursuant Stayton Municipal Code title 
8.04.300 on electrical facilities upon notification from City. 

5. Maintenance Personnel. Maintenance personnel shall at a minimum be on duty eight (8) 
hours a day, during regular Monday through Friday working days, and shall be on-call 
at all times to respond to system outages in a prompt and expedient manner. 

4.12.040 USE OF PUBLIC WAYS 

1. Excavation and Restoration. 

a. PacifiCorp shall comply with all applicable ordinances, municipal codes, rules or 
regulations that may pertain to its activities within easements, public places and 
public rights-of-way of City. 

b. All structures, lines, and equipment erected by PacifiCorp within the City shall 
be located so as to cause minimum interference, with the proper use of streets, 
alleys, and other public rights-of-ways and places, and to cause minimum 
interference with the rights or reasonable convenience of property owners who 
adjoin any of the streets, alleys, or other public rights-of-ways or places. 

c. Pursuant to Stayton Municipal Code Section 12.04.092, no newly overlaid street 
or newly constructed street shall be excavated by PacifiCorp for a period of five 
(5) years from the time of completion of the street overlay or the street 
construction unless specifically authorized by City, or in cases of an emergency 
declared by authorized City, state or federal officials. Such authorization shall 
not be unreasonably withheld. 

d. All installations by PacifiCorp in new residential subdivisions shall be, 
wherever and whenever practical, placed in conjunction with all other utility 
installations in compliance with existing regulations. 

e. Except as provided in Section 4.12.040.1, when any excavation is made by 
PacifiCorp, PacifiCorp shall, within seven (7) calendar days, restore the affected 
portion of the street, bridge, easement area, private property or public place to as 
reasonably good a condition as it was prior to the excavation. The restoration 

Ordinance No. 939 
Granting Nonexclusive Electric Utility Franchise to PacifiCorp 
September 06, 2011 

Page 7 of 24 



shall be done in compliance with City specifications, requirements, and 
regulations in effect at the time of such restoration and shall be guaranteed for a 
period of one year following inspection and acceptance of the restoration by 
City. If PacifiCorp fails to restore, within seven (7) calendar days, the affected 
portion of the street, bridge, easement area, private property, or public place to 
as reasonably good a condition in which it was prior to the excavation, City may 
make the restoration, and the reasonable costs of making the restoration, 
including the cost of inspection, supervision, and administration shall be paid by 
PacifiCorp. City may grant an extension to the seven (7) calendar day 
requirement of this section. 

f. City may require that any excavation made by PacifiCorp in any street, bridge, 
or public place be filled and the surface replaced by City, and that the reasonable 
cost thereof, including the cost of inspection, supervision, and the administration 
shall be paid by PacifiCorp. 

g. The reasonable costs of excavation and restoration incurred by City pursuant to 
Section 4.12.040.l.e and 4.12.040.l.f of this franchise, including the cost of 
inspection, supervision, and administration shall be paid by PacifiCorp to City in 
accordance with the standard billing policy of City in effect at the time the 
excavation or restoration occurred. 

2. Relocation of Facilities. 

a. PacifiCorp shall, at its expense, protect, support, temporarily disconnect, or 
relocate any of its equipment or facilities that are required to promote the public 
interest by City by reason of traffic conditions, public safety, street vacation, 
freeway and street construction, change or establishment of street grade, 
installation of sanitary or storm sewer lines, water pipes, power lines, signal 
lines, or tracks, or any other type of structures or public improvements by City or 
its agents. Relocation of facilities, required by City shall be completed within a 
time limit mutually agreed to by City and PacifiCorp. 

b. A written request for facility relocation may be initiated directly by City or by a 
private developer or contractor installing or modifying public infrastructure 
under the approval of City; provided PacifiCorp may charge the expense of 
removal or relocation to the developer or contractor that makes a request, 
directly or indirectly, if the removal or relocation is caused by an identifiable 
development of property in the area, or is made for the convenience of a 
developer or contractor. PacifiCorp shall not be reimbursed for removal or 
relocation requested by, and for the sole convenience of City. 

c. All facilities placed in the public rights-of-way shall be placed in coordination 
with City and other affected utilities. 

Ordinance No. 939 
Granting Nonexclusive Electric Utility Franchise to PacifiCorp 
September 06, 20 I I 

Page 8 of 24 

lludwick
Highlight

lludwick
Highlight

lludwick
Highlight



d. If PacifiCorp fails to comply with any requirement of City pursuant to this 
section, City may remove or relocate the facilities at PacifiCorp's expense, 
unless said removal or relocation would be in violation of any portions of ORS 
757.800 and ORS 757.805. 

e. If the removal or relocation of facilities is caused directly or otherwise by an 
identifiable development of property in the area, or is made for the convenience 

of a customer, PacifiCorp may charge the expense of removal or relocation to 
the developer or customer. 

3. Tree Pruning. 

a. Subject to the provisions of this ordinance, PacifiCorp may pnme trees, when 
necessary in easements, for the operation of the utility lines, wires or other 
appurtenances, provided such pruning shall be performed by or supervised by a 
certified arborist, in accordance with applicable City ordinances, and it shall be 
done without cost or expense to City. 

b. PacifiCorp shall provide a written notice to the City Public Works Department 
and property owner and resident at least ten (1 0) business days prior to any 
pruning to be done on the property. City recognizes that a ten (1 0) day notice 
may not be possible in emergency situations, however, City does encourage 
PacifiCorp to provide as much advance notice to property owners and residents 
as is reasonably possible under such emergency circumstances. 

4. Use of Facilities by City. 

a. As additional consideration for the franchise and privileges granted to 
PacifiCorp by this ordinance, City shall have the free right and privilege to 
install, or affix and maintain street lights, wires, seasonal decorations and 
equipment for municipal purposes upon the structures and installations, 
excluding underground facilities, owned and/or maintained by PacifiCorp. For 
the purpose of this section, the term "municipal purposes" means all municipal 
purposes except the distribution or sale of electric power to the public and 
includes, but is not limited to, the use of structures and installations for: 

Ordinance No. 939 

i. Municipal fire, police, water, wastewater, and storm water utility 
service wires and equipment. 

ii. Municipal interdepartmental computers and communications. 

111. Municipal fire alann and police and traffic signals, signs, and 
equipment. 

Page 9 of 24 
Granting Nonexclusive Electric Utility Franchise to PacifiCorp 
September 06, 20 II 

lludwick
Highlight



iv. Seasonal decorations and special event banners and attachments 
authorized by the City. 

b. City shall install, affix, maintain and operate its wires and equipment at its own 
expense and in accordance with the requirements of State and Federal law, and 
regulations adopted pursuant thereto, and in accordance with good engineering 
practice and safety standards. The wires and equipment of City shall be subject 
to interference by PacifiCorp only when necessary for the maintenance, 
operation or repair of the facilities of PacifiCorp. PacifiCorp's actions shall not 
unduly interfere with City's safe and convenient use of its installations. 

c. City shall install, affix, maintain and operate its wires and equipment in such a 
manner as not to impose any undue additional expense upon PacifiCorp, or 
unduly interfere with the safe and convenient use and maintenance by 
PacifiCorp of its structures and installations. 

i. If there is not sufficient space available thereon for said purposes, 
PacifiCorp shall change, alter or re-anange its structures at City's 
expense so as to provide proper clearance for such wires or appurtenant 
facilities. 

ii. Such facilities shall be subject to interference by PacifiCorp only 
when and to the extent necessary for the proper construction, 
maintenance, operation or repair ofPacifiCorp's facilities. 

d. City shall indemnify, protect, and save PacifiCorp, its officers, employees and 
agents, harmless against and from any and all damages, claims, loss, liability, 
cost or expense resulting from damage to propetiy or injury or death to any third 
person to the extent caused by or arising out of the installation, maintenance, 
existence, or use of the installations for municipal purposes as described in 
Section 4.12.040.4. 

5. Use of Bridges and Public Places by PacifiCorp. 

a. Before PacifiCorp may use or occupy any bridge or public place, PacifiCorp 
shall first obtain permission from City to do so and comply with any special 
conditions City desires to impose on such use or occupation. 

b. The compensation paid by PacifiCorp for this franchise includes compensation 
for the use of bridges and public places located within the City, as authorized. 
However, this subsection shall not be construed to prevent City from requiring 
PacifiCorp to pay the compensation or charges as provided in Section 
4.12.060.1. 

6. Emergency Removal and Altemate Routing of Facilities. 

Ordinance No. 939 
Granting Nonexclusive Electric Utility Franchise to PacifiCorp 
September 06, 20 II 

Page 10 of 24 



a. 

b. 

c. 

4.12.050 

If at any time, in case of fire or disaster in the franchise tenitory, it shall become 
necessary in the reasonable judgment of City to cut or move any of the wires, 
equipment or other appurtenances to the system of PacifiCorp, such cutting or 
moving may be done and any repairs rendered necessary thereby shall be made 
by PacifiCorp, at its sole expense, provided that such repairs are not necessitated 
by a negligent act of City, in which case costs for repairs shall be borne by City. 

City shall indemnify, protect and hold PacifiCorp, its officers, employees and 
agents harmless against and from all damages, claims, loss, liability, cost or 
expense resulting from damage to property or injury or death to any third person 
caused by such cutting or moving any of the wires, equipment or other 
appurtenances. 

In the event continued use of a street or easement is denied to PacifiCorp by City 
for any reason, PacifiCorp shall provide service to affected customers over such 
alternate routes as shall be determined by PacifiCorp within a reasonable period 
of time. City shall provide or attempt to provide an alternate route if continued 
use of a street or easement is denied to PacifiCorp. 

CONSTRUCTION 

1. Public Works and Improvements Not Affected by Franchise. City reserves the right to: 

a. Construct, install, maintain, and operate any public improvement, work, or 
facility. 

b. Do any work that City may find desirable on, or over, or under any street, bridge 
or public right-of-way. 

c. Vacate, alter, or close any street, bridge or public right-of-way. 

d. Whenever City shall excavate or perfonn any work in any of the present and 
future streets, alleys, and public rights-of-way of City, or shall contract or issue 
permits to others for such excavation or work, where such excavation or work 
may disturb PacifiCorp's underground electric utility, pipes, conduits, and 
appurtenances, the City may, in writing, notify PacifiCorp sufficiently in 
advance of such contemplated excavation or work to enable PacifiCorp to take 
such measures as may be deemed necessary to protect such underground electric 
utility, pipes, conduits, and appurtenances from damage and possible 
inconvenience to the public. In any such case, PacifiCorp, upon receiving such 
notice, shall ftm1ish maps or drawings to City or contractor, as the case may be, 
showing the approximate location of all its structures in the area involved in 
such proposed excavation or other work. 

Ordinance No. 939 
Granting Nonexclusive Electric Utility Franchise to PacifiCorp 
September 06, 201 I 

Page 11 of 24 



e. Whenever City shall vacate any street or public place for the convenience or 
benefit of any person or governmental agency or instrumentality other than City, 
PacifiCorp's rights shall be preserved as to any of its facilities then existing in 
such street or public place. 

2. Control of Construction. PacifiCorp shall file with City, maps that meet City 
specifications, showing the location of any construction, extension, or relocation of any 
of its electric lines, conduits or facilities and must first obtain City's approval of the 
location and plans prior to the commencement of the work. PacifiCorp shall be required 
to obtain a permit from City before commencing the construction, extension, or 

relocation of any of its electric utility transmission or distribution facilities within an 
easement. 

3. Maps. Upon request from the City, PacifiCorp shall provide the City with a system "as 
built" map in mutually acceptable format showing the location of PacifiCorp's electric 
facilities within the public right of ways of the City. 

4. Rearrangement of Facilities to Permit Moving of Buildings and Other Objects. 

a. Upon reasonable advance notice in writing from any person desiring to move a 
building or other object, PacifiCorp shall temporarily raise, lower, or remove its 
facilities upon any street, bridge, or public place within the City, when 
necessary, to permit the person to move the building or other object across or 
along such street, bridge or public place. The raising, lowering, or removal of 
the facilities of PacifiCorp shall be in accordance with all applicable ordinances 
and regulations of City. 

b. The notice required by Section 4.12.050.4.a of this section shall bear the 
approval of the Administrator, shall detail the route of movement of the building 
or other objects, and shall provide the actual expense incurred by PacifiCorp in 
making the temporary rearrangement of its facilities, including the cost to 
PacifiCorp of any interruption of service to its customers caused thereby, will be 
borne by the person giving the notice. It shall fmiher provide that the person 
giving said notice will indemnify and save PacifiCorp harmless from any and all 
damages or claims whatsoever caused directly or indirectly from such temporary 
rearrangement of PacifiCorp' s facilities. 

c. PacifiCorp, before making the temporary rearrangement of its facilities, may 
require the person desiring the temporary rearrangement to deposit cash or other 
adequate security reasonably acceptable to PacifiCorp, to secure payment of the 
costs of rearrangement as estimated by PacifiCorp. 

d. Upon advance notice by City of its own intent to move a building or other 
object, either in its governmental or proprietary capacity and for the sole benefit 

Ordinance No. 939 
Granting Nonexclusive Electric Utility Franchise to PacifiCorp 
September 06, 20 II 

Page 12 of 24 



of City, the temporary rearrangement of PacifiCorp's facilities shall be 
accomplished by PacifiCorp at no cost to City; provided, however, that the 
indemnification provisions of Section 4.12.050.4.b shall still apply to City. 

4.12.060 FINANCIAL 

1. Compensation. 

a. In consideration of the rights, privileges, and franchise hereby granted, 
PacifiCorp shall pay to City from and after the effective date of the acceptance 
of this franchise, five percent (5.0%) of its gross revenues derived from within 
the corporate limits of City. Notwithstanding any provision to the contrary, at 
any ti'me during the term of this franchise, City may elect to increase the 
franchise fee to any greater amount as may then be allowed by state law. City 
shall provide PacifiCorp prior written notice of such increase following adoption 
of the change in percentage by City. The increase shall be effective sixty (60) 
days after City has provided PacifiCorp with such written notice. 

b. The compensation required by this section shall be due on or before the 25th day 
of each and every month for the month preceding. Within thirty (30) days after 
the termination of this franchise, compensation shall be paid for the period 
elapsing since the end of the last month for which compensation has been paid. 

c. PacifiCorp shall furnish to City with each payment of compensation required by 
this section a statement, showing the amount of gross revenue of PacifiCorp 
within the City for the period covered by the payment and including an 
explanation of the basis upon which the amount of compensation is calculated. 
If PacifiCorp fails to pay the entire amount of compensation due to City through 
error or otherwise within the times allotted for payment in Section 4.12.060.l.b 
above, the amount of the compensation due for that month and not timely paid 
shall be subject to a late penalty of an additional ten (1 0) percent plus interest of 
two (2%) percent per month on the amount of compensation due and unpaid 
from the date due until it is paid together with the late penalty. 

d. Nothing contained in this franchise shall give PacifiCorp any credit against any 
ad valorem property tax now or hereafter levied against real or personal property 
within the City, or against any local improvement assessment or any business tax 
imposed on PacifiCorp, or against any charges imposed upon PacifiCorp as 
provided in Section 4.12.060.4 of this franchise, or reimbursement or indemnity 
paid to City. 

e. In the event PacifiCorp is prohibited by State or Federal law from paying a fee 
or compensation based on gross revenues, or City is prohibited by State or 
Federal law from collecting such a fee or compensation, either City or 
PacifiCorp shall have the right to re-open the franchise agreement to renegotiate 

Ordinance No. 939 
Granting Nonexclusive Electric Utility Franchise to PacifiCorp 
September 06, 2011 

Page 13 of 24 



the compensation section. Additionally, if at any time a volumetric approach to 
the calculation of fees or compensation is deemed by City as advantageous,· 
PacifiCorp shall cooperate in the renegotiation of the compensation section to 
ensure that City shall remain "revenue neutral" in respect to the total amount of 
fees or compensation collected from PacifiCorp. 

f. In the event Oregon law is changed to provide for a franchise fee or privilege tax 
in an amount greater than the amount established in Section 4.12.060.l.a, or 
PacifiCorp agrees to pay any other city in the State of Oregon a higher amount 
pursuant thereto, City shall have the right to re-open the franchise agreement for 
the purpose of establishing the franchise fee or privilege tax in an amount equal 
to that being paid to such other city. 

2. Insurance. 

a. PacifiCorp shall indemnify, protect and save City, its officers, employees and 
agents, hannless against and from any and all damage claims, and any and all 
loss, liability, cost or expense, occasioned by any negligent act or omission of 
PacifiCorp in the construction, maintenance, operation, or repair ofPacifiCorp's 
property or any use thereof, and PacifiCorp shall at all times comply with any 
lawful present or future charter provisions, ordinances, rules or regulations of 
City relating to the manner of occupation or use, or to the repair or improvement 
of all public rights-of-way. 

b. PacifiCorp shall, for the purposes of can·ying out the provisions of this franchise, 
prior to commencing construction of any kind, have in full force and effect, and 
file evidence thereto with the City Administrator, good and sufficient insurance 
policies covering Employer's Liability insurance with a minimum limit of 
$500,000; Commercial General Liability insurance, to include contractual 
liability, with a minimum single limit of $1,000,000 to protect against and from 
all loss by reason of injury to persons or damage to property based upon and 
arising out of the work performed under this franchise; Business Automobile 
Liability insurance with a minimum single limit of $1,000,000 for bodily injury 
and property damage with respect to vehicles whether owned, hired or non
owned, assigned to or used by any contractor in the performance of the work. 
PacifiCorp may self-insure for any or all of the above coverage and shall furnish 
City with documentation, acceptable to City, certifying evidence of self
msurance. 

c. The City of Stayton, its officers, agents, and employees, shall be named insureds 
in any policy or self-insurance covering losses caused in whole or in part by 
reason of the exercise of the rights and privileges herein granted, but only such 
losses for which PacifiCorp has agreed to indemnify City per the terms of this 
franchise. PacifiCorp shall pay all expenses incurred by City in defending itself 
with regard to all damages and penalties mentioned in Section 4.12.060.2.a 

Ordinance No. 939 
Granting Nonexclusive Electric Utility Franchise to PacifiCorp 
September 06, 20 II 

Page 14 of 24 



above. These expenses shall include all out-of-pocket expenses, including 
consultants' or attorneys' fees. 

3. Damages. Damages and penalties shall include, but shall not be limited to, damages 
arising out of personal injury, property damage, copyright infringement, defamation, 
antitrust, errors and omissions, theft, fire, and all other damages arising out of 
PacifiCorp's exercise of this franchise, whether or not any act or omission complained 
of is authorized, allowed, or prohibited by this franchise. 

4. Permits. Nothing in this ordinance shall be construed to limit the right of City to require 
PacifiCorp to obtain any necessary permits required by the Stayton Municipal Code. 

5. Reflecting Expenditures on Billing Statements. If the franchise fee or compensation 
paid to City is itemized on the customer billing statement, it shall only be the an1ount 
over 3.5% of PacifiCorp's gross revenues in accordance with the applicable· Oregon 
Administrative Rules. 

4.12.070 CITY ADMINISTRATION OF FRANCHISE. 

1. Ongoing Communication. PacifiCorp shall keep City informed of all new 
developments, issues or concerns affecting the utility system. PacifiCorp shall notify 
the Administrator in advance of any public announcement that is to be made on such 
subjects. City shall endeavor to notify PacifiCorp of any developments or issues 
concerning the franchise in advance of any public annotmcement on such subjects. 

2. PacifiCorp's Rules. PacifiCorp shall have authority to promulgate such reasonable rules 
and regulations governing the conduct of its business as shall be reasonably necessary to 
enable PacifiCorp to exercise its rights and performance obligations under this 
franchise, and to assure uninterrupted service to its customers. PacifiCorp's rules and 
regulations shall be subject to provisions of this ordinance and any other governmental 
regulations. Copies of such rules and regulations, and any updates, shall be furnished to 
City or be made available through PacifiCorp's electronic web site. 

3. Right to Inspect Records. PacifiCorp shall keep current, accurate records of account at 
any office within a reasonable days commute of City for the purpose of determining the 
amounts due City under Sections 4.12.060.l.a and 4.12.060.l.c of this ordinance. City 
may inspect and audit the records of account, upon written request. The City Council 
may request periodic reports from PacifiCorp relating to its revenue within the City. 

4. Reports and Records. 

a. Within thirty (30) days following any written request by City, PacifiCorp shall 
fumish to City a report which will accurately identify the total number of 
PacifiCorp's customers, according to customer class, within the City limits. 

b. The cost of preparing and furnishing to City the records and reports required by 

Ordinance No. 939 
Granting Nonexclusive Electric Utility Franchise to PacifiCorp 
September 06, 20 11 

Page 15 of 24 



this franchise shall be borne by PacifiCorp. 

5. Assignment or Sale of Franchise or Facilities. PacifiCorp shall not transfer or assign 
any rights under this franchise to another person or entity, except transfers and 
assignments by operation of law including mergers and similar transactions, unless City 
shall first give its approval in writing, which approval shall not be unreasonably 
withheld or delayed; provided, however, inclusion of this franchise as property subject 
to the lien ofPacifiCorp's mortgage(s) shall not constitute a transfer or assignment. 

6. Remedies Not Exclusive: When Requirement Waived. All remedies and penalties under 
this ordinance, including termination of the franchise, are cumulative, and the recovery 
or enforcement of one is not a bar to the recovery or enforcement of any other such 
remedy or penalty. The remedies and penalties contained in this ordinance, including 
termination of the franchise, are not exclusive, and City reserves the right to enforce the 
penal provisions of any ordinance or resolution and to avail itself of any and all 
remedies available at law or in equity. Failure to enforce shall not be construed as a 
waiver of a breach of any term, condition, or obligation imposed upon PacifiCorp by, or 
pursuant to, this ordinance. A specific waiver of a pruiicular breach of any term, 
condition, or obligation imposed upon PacifiCorp by, or pursuant to, this ordinance or 
acceptance of any payment due shall not be a waiver of any other or subsequent or 
future breach of the same or any other term, condition, or obligation itself. 

7. City's Right to Revoke. In addition to all other rights which City has pursuant to law or 
equity, City reserves the right to revoke, terminate, or cancel this franchise, and all 
rights and privileges pertaining thereto, in the event that: 

a. PacifiCorp repeatedly violates any material provision of this franchise. 
i. The following provisions are deemed to be material to the 
performance of the franchise: 

1111 Continuous Service (Section 4.12.030.1) 
1111 Emergency Repair Service (Section 4.12.030.2) 
1111 Excavation and Restoration (Section 4.12.040.1) 
1111 Relocation and Facilities (Section 4.12.040.2) 
1111 Compensation (Section 4.12.060.1) 
1111 Insurance (Section 4.12.060.2) 
1111 Damages (Section 4.12.060.3) 
111 Assignment of Sale of Franchise (Section 4.12.070.5) 

b. PacifiCorp practices any fraud upon City or any customer. 

c. PacifiCorp becomes insolvent, unable or unwilling to pay its debs, or is adjudged 
bankrupt. 

d. PacifiCorp misrepresents a material fact in the application for or negotiation of, 
or renegotiation of, or renewal of, the franchise. 

Ordinance No. 939 
Granting Nonexclusive Electric Utility Franchise to PacitiCorp 
September 06, 20 I I 

Page 16 of 24 



e. PacifiCorp deliberately fails to operate the system without prior approval of City 
or without just cause. 

8. Revocation Procedures; 

a. City shall provide PacifiCorp with a written notice of the cause of termination 
and its intention to terminate or revoke the franchise and shall allow PacifiCorp 
a minimum of ninety (90) days after service of the notice in which to correct the 
violation. If at the end of the ninety (90) day period, PacifiCorp has not 
corrected the matter which provides grounds for termination, the franchise may, 
at the option of City, become null and void and PacifiCorp shall thereafter be 
entitled to none of the privileges or rights herein extended to them and said 
PacifiCorp shall thereupon cease and desist from any activity within the City 
limits of City; provided, however, that City may at its option pursue any other 
and different or additional remedy provided to it by law or in equity. 

b. PacifiCorp shall be afforded due process and provided with an opportunity to be 
heard at a public hearing before the City Council prior to the termination of the 
franchise. The City Council shall hear any persons interested therein, and shall 
determine, in its discretion, whether or not any failure, refusal, or neglect by 
Pacifi Corp has occmTed. 

c. Any revocation of this franchise shall be by formal action of the City Council, 
by ordinance. 

9. Penalties. Subject to requirement of prior notice as set forth in Section 4.12.070.10.a 
below, for violations of this ordinance occurring without just cause, City may, at its 
discretion and in addition to any other remedies provided herein, assess penalties against 
PacifiCorp as follows: 
a. For failure to adhere to material provisions of this franchise, as defined in 

Section 4.12.070. 7 .a.i, and in lieu of revocation as described in Sections 
4.12.070.7 and 4.12.070.8, Two Hundred Fmiy Dollars ($240.00) per day for 
each provision not fulfilled. 

b. For failure to comply with any provision of this franchise, for which a penalty is 
not otherwise specifically provided, the penalty shall be One Hundred Twenty 
Dollars ($120.00) per day, per each occuiTence. 

1 0. Procedure for Imposition of Penalties. 

a. Whenever City finds that PacifiCorp has violated one (1) or more terms, 
conditions or provisions of this franchise, a written notice, or a verbal notice 
followed by a written notice, shall be given to PacifiCorp informing it of such 
violation or liability. If the violation concerns requirements mandated by City 

Ordinance No. 939 
Granting Nonexclusive Electric Utility Franchise to PacifiCorp 
September 06, 20 II 

Page 17 of 24 



b. 

c. 

d. 

4.12.080 

permits, a verbal notice followed by a written notice will be given. The written 
notice shall describe in reasonable detail the specific violation so as to afford 
PacifiCorp an oppmiunity to remedy the violation. PacifiCorp shall have twenty 
(20) working days subsequent to receipt of the notice in which to correct the 
violation. PacifiCorp may, within ten (10) days of receipt of notice, notify City 
that there is a dispute as to whether a violation or failure has, in fact, occurred. 
Such notice by PacifiCorp to City shall specify with particularity the matters 
disputed by PacifiCorp. 

The City Council shall hear PacifiCorp's dispute at its next regularly or specially 
scheduled meeting. The City Council shall supplement its decision with written 
findings of fact. 

If after hearing the dispute the claim is upheld by the City Council, PacifiCorp 
shall have twenty (20) working days from such a determination to remedy the 
violation or failure. 

PacifiCorp shall be liable for full payment of all penalties imposed under this 
section. 

POST FRANCHISE 

1. City Right in Franchise. 

a. Notwithstanding City's rights as outlined in Section 4.12.040.4, City use of 
PacifiCorp's facilities shall at all times comply with the rules and regulations of 
PacifiCorp and shall not compete or interfere with PacifiCorp's use. City shall 
hold PacifiCorp harmless from any claims arising out of City's use of said 
facilities hereafter. 

b. City shall have the right to observe and inspect all construction or installation of 
PacifiCorp's facilities subject to the provisions of this ordinance and to make 
such inspections as it shall find necessary to insure compliance with governing 
laws, rules, and regulations. No construction shall be commenced prior to 
approval by City. PacifiCorp is responsible for all work performed by or for 
PacifiCorp or its agents. 

c. Upon any termination of this franchise, whether before the expiration of the 
franchise or upon expiration, or by any abandonment of the franchise by 
PacifiCorp (except for an unapproved assignment provided in Section 
4.12.070.5), all equipment installed or used by PacifiCorp shall be removed by 
PacifiCorp at PacifiCorp's expense and the prope1iy upon which said equipment 
was used restored by PacifiCorp to the original or better than original condition 
it was in before installation or use by PacifiCorp. 

2. Foreclosure, Receivership and Abandonment. 

Ordinance No. 939 
Granting Nonexclusive Electric Utility Franchise to PacifiCorp 
September 06, 20 II 

Page 18 of 24 



a. Upon the foreclosure or other judicial sale of the system, PacifiCorp shall notify 
City of such fact and such notification shall be treated as a notification that a 
change in control of PacifiCorp has taken place, and the provisions of this 
franchise governing the consent to transfer or change ownership shall apply 
without regard to how such transfer or change in ownership occurred. 

b. City shall have the right to cancel or terminate this franchise subject to any 
applicable provisions of Oregon or Federal law, including the Bankruptcy Act, 
one hundred and twenty (120) days after the appointment of a debtor-in
possession, receiver or tmstee to take over and conduct the business of 
PacifiCorp, whether in receivership, reorganization, bankruptcy, or other action 
or proceeding, unless such receivership or tmsteeship shall have been vacated 
prior to the expiration of said one hundred and twenty (120) days, or unless: 

i. Within one hundred and twenty (120) days after election or 
appointment, such receiver or trustee shall have fully complied with all 
the provisions of this franchise and remedied all defaults there under; and 

ii. Such receiver or trustee, within said one hundred and twenty (120) 
days, shall have executed an agreement, duly approved by the court 
having jurisdiction in the premises, whereby such receiver or trustee 
assumes and agrees to be bound by each and every provision of this 
franchise. 

3. Continuity of Service Mandatory. Upon expiration or the termination of this franchise, 
City may require PacifiCorp to continue to operate the system for an extended period of 
time, not to exceed twelve (12) months. PacifiCorp shall, as trustee for its successor in 
interest, continue to operate the system under the terms and conditions of this franchise. 
In the event PacifiCorp does not so operate the system, City may take such steps as it, in 
its sole discretion, deems necessary to assure continued service to subscribers, at 
PacifiCorp's cost and expense. 

4.12.090 MISCELLANEOUS 

1. Compliance with Laws, Rules, and Regulations. At all times during the term of this 
franchise, PacifiCorp shall comply with all applicable laws, ordinances, municipal 
codes, rules, and regulations of the United States of America, the State of Oregon, 
Marion County and the City of Stayton including all agencies and subdivisions thereof. 
PacifiCorp shall be subject to the lawful exercise of the police power of City and to such 
reasonable regulations as City may from time to time hereafter by resolution or 
ordinance provide. No provision of this franchise shall be construed as a waiver of 
local, State, or Federal law, or as a limit of liability. 

a. If at any time during the term of this franchise, City implements a generic "Right 

Ordinance No. 939 
Granting Nonexclusive Electric Utility Franchise to PacifiCorp 
September 06, 2011 

Page 19 of 24 



of Way Management Ordinance" or similarly title document which may apply to 
all of City's utility franchises, PacifiCorp agrees to abide by such ordinance; 
provided that any specific conflicts between such an ordinance and this franchise 
ordinance shall be mutually reviewed and resolved by City and PacifiCorp. 

2. Discriminatory Practices Prohibited. PacifiCorp shall make its services available 
without discrimination and shall not give any person any preference or advantage not 
available to all persons similarly situated. Notwithstanding the above, the City Council 
may, by resolution, approve any program or service offered by PacifiCorp that the City 
Council believes to be in the best interest of the City. PacifiCorp shall comply at all 
times with all other applicable, Federal, State, and local laws, and all executive and 
administrative orders relating to non-discrimination. 

3. Rules of Construction. This ordinance shall be construed liberally in order to effectuate 
its purposes. Unless otherwise specifically prescribed in this ordinance, the following 
provisions shall govern its interpretation and construction: 

a. When not inconsistent with the context, words used in the present tense include 
the future, words in the plural number include singular number, and words in the 
singular number include the plural number. 

b. Time is of the essence of this ordinance. PacifiCorp shall not be relieved of its 
obligation to comply promptly with any provision of this ordinance by any 
failure of City to enforce prompt compliance with any of its provisions. 

c. Unless otherwise specified in this ordinance, any action authorized or required to 
be taken by City may be taken by the City Council or by an official or agent 
designated by the City Council. 

d. Every duty and every act to be performed by either party imposes an obligation 
of good faith on the party to perform such. 

4. Severability and Constitutionality. If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, or 
phrase of this ordinance is for any reason held illegal, invalid, or unconstitutional by the 
decision of any court of competent jurisdiction, such decision shall not affect the 
validity of the remaining positions hereof. 

a. The City Council hereby declares that it would have passed this ordinance and 
each section, subsection, sentence, clause, and phrase hereof irrespective of the 
fact that any one or more sections, subsections, sentences, clauses, or phrases be 
declared illegal, invalid, or unconstitutional. The invalidity of any portion of 
this ordinance shall not abate, reduce, or otherwise affect any other consideration 
or obligation required of PacifiCorp by any franchise granted hereafter. If, for 
any reason, the franchise fee or compensation is invalidated or amended by the 
act of any court or authorized governmental agency, then the highest reasonable 

Ordinance No. 939 
Granting Nonexclusive Electric Utility Franchise to PacifiCorp 
September 06, 20 11 

Page 20 of 24 



franchise fee or compensation allowed by such court or authorized governmental 
agency shall be the franchise fee or compensation charged by this ordinance. 

b. Written Notice. All notices, reports, or demands required to be given in writing 
under this franchise shall be deemed to be given when a registered or certified 
mail receipt is returned indicating delivery, or on the next addressed business 
day if sent by express mail or overnight air courier to the party to which notice is 
being given as follows: 

If to the City: 

Ifto PacifiCorp: 

City of Stayton 
362 Nmih Third Avenue 
Stayton, OR 97383 
Attn: City Administrator 

PacifiCorp, Pacific Power 
P.O. Box 248 
830 Old Salem Road 
Albany, OR 97321 
Attn: Regional Community Manager 

Such addresses may be changed by either party upon written notice to the other 
pmiy given as provided in this section. 

5. Dispute Resolution. Notwithstanding the provisions of Section 4.12.070.1 0, any dispute 
regarding the terms of this franchise shall be resolved in the following manner: 

a. Mandatory Mediation. In the event a dispute arises between the parties, it is 
agreed that they shall engage in mandatory mediation. The parties shall agree on 
the selection of a Mediator within ten (10) days' written notice from either party 
and, if not, the Circuit Court Presiding Judge for the Oregon County which 
would have jurisdiction on the issues shall make the selection. The mediation 
shall occur within twenty (20) days of the selection of the Mediator. The parties 
shall at all times perfmm in good faith and shall make every effort to resolve the 
dispute in mediation. 

b. Arbitration. Except for the pre-requirement of Section 4.12.090.6.a, each pmiy, 
at the party's option, shall have the right to require that any claim, controversy, 
or dispute between the parties be determined by binding arbitration in 
accordance with the Uniform Trial Court Rules for Oregon, and any judgment 
upon the award rendered pursuant to such arbitration may be entered in any 
court having jurisdiction thereof. If litigation has been commenced in court by 
either party with respect to a dispute, with the expectation that a default 
judgment could be obtained: 

i.The patty who is the defendant or respondent in such litigation shall be 

Ordinance No. 939 
Granting Nonexclusive Electric Utility Franchise to PacifiCorp 
September 06, 20 I I 

Page 21 of 24 



deemed to have waived its option to arbitrate said dispute if such party 
files a general appearance in the litigation prior to providing written 
notice to the plaintiff or claimant of the filing of a claim in arbitration in 
the manner specified above; and, 

ii. The plaintiff or petitioner in such litigation shall be deemed to have 
waived its right to arbitrate said dispute if such party fails to file a claim 
for arbitration in the manner specified above within sixty days after a 
general appearance in the litigation has been filed by the party who is the 
defendant or respondent in the litigation. This provision is intended to 
allow either party to commence litigation and seek an order of default 
without waiving the right to arbitrate in the event the default is not 
attainable. 

iii. If either party exercises its option to arbitrate, arbitration of such 
dispute shall be mandatory and any pending litigation shall be stayed. 

iv. There will be no right to appeal an order or decision made by the 
Arbitrator or decision maker after arbitration or trial. 

v. The prevailing party in the arbitration may be awarded reasonable 
attorneys' fees and costs. 

6 Non-enforcement by City. PacifiCorp shall not be relieved of its obligation to comply 
with any of the provisions of this franchise by reason of any failure of City to enforce 
prompt compliance. 

7. Captions. The paragraph captions and headings in this franchise are for the convenience 
and reference purposes only and shall not affect in any way the meaning of 
interpretation of this franchise. 

8. Calculation of Time. Where the performance of doing of any act, duty, matter, 
payment, or thing is required hereunder and the period of time or duration for the 
performance or doing thereof is prescribed and fixed herein, the time shall be computed 
so as to exclude the first and include the last day of the prescribed or fixed period or 
duration of time unless stipulated otherwise in this agreement. When the last day of the 
period falls on Saturday, Sunday, or a legal holiday, that day shall be omitted form the 
computation. 

Ordinance No. 939 
Granting Nonexclusive Electric Utility Franchise to PacifiCorp 
September 06, 20 II 

Page 22 of 24 



Adopted by the Stayton City Council this 6th day of September 2011. 

CITY OF STAYTON 

APPROVED AS TO FORM 

DAVID A. RHOTEN, City Attorney 

Ordinance No. 939 
Granting Nonexclusive Electric Utility Franchise to PacifiCorp 
September 06, 20 II 

ATTACHMENT A 

Page 23 of 24 



ACCEPTANCE OF ORDINANCE NO. 939 
City of Stayton, Oregon 

TO THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF STAYTON: 

WHEREAS, on the 6th day of September, 2011, the Stayton City Council of the City of 
Stayton, Oregon, enacted Ordinance No. 939, which is: 

AN ORDINANCE GRANTING A NONEXCLUSIVE ELECTRIC UTILITY 
FRANCHISE TO PACIFICORP, AN OREGON CORPORATION, DOING 
BUSINESS AS PACIFIC POWER AND LIGHT COMPANY, AND FIXING 
TERMS, CONDITIONS, AND COMPENSATION OF SUCH FRANCHISE 

WHEREAS, the ordinance was granted upon the condition that the Grantee, PacifiCorp dba 
Pacific Power and Light Company, shall, within thirty (30) days of the passage and approval of 
the ordinance, file with the City Administrator or the City of Stayton, its written acceptance of 
all terms and conditions of the ordinance: 

NOW, THEREFORE, KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, that PacifiCorp dba Pacific 
Power and Light Company does hereby accept Stayton City Ordinance No. 939 and all the 
terms and conditions of said ordinance. 

IN WITNESS WHERE9f~ific Po~ Light Company, Inc. has caused this acceptance 
to be duly executed this~ day of • , 2011. 

Ordinance No. 939 
Granting Nonexclusive Electric Utility Franchise to PacifiCorp 
September 06, 20 I I 

BA PACIFIC POWER AND 
NY 

Page 24 of 24 































































































City of Stayton DRAFT
                  Annual Budget Calendar
                  Fiscal Year 2018-19

Prepared date: January 19, 2018

Description Parties Dates

Initiate Budget development - distribute draft calendar 
City Manager and 
management team

January 19

Budget calendar - distribute draft
Mayor, Council,  City 
Administrator

February 5

Desired positions, position changes provided to finance Management team March 2
Complete 5-year template information request form including 
Updated Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) 

Management team week of Mar 12

Estimate current year-end revenue and expenditures Management team March 16
Preliminary revenue forecasts, review goal setting issues and 
budget priorities.                                  

City Manager and 
management team

March 16

Update salary schedule and total compenation costs, distribute 
to management for review and approval

Finance March 16

Work session - review mid-year financials, forecasts and discuss 
significant budget issues

Budget Committee week of Mar 19

Departments provide the following to finance:                           
Review personnel costs and provide amounts for materials and 
services and capital outlay for requested budget                                                                                                

Management team March 30

Department meetings with City Manager and finance Management team week of April 9
Finance review of year-end revenue and expenditure estimates - 
resolve items with management team/City Manager

Management team week of April 16

Provide and publish “Notice of Budget Committee Meeting” 
(ORS 294.426)

Finance week of April 16

Budget narratives completed and submitted to finance Management team April 18
Aggregate budget document Finance  week of April 23
First Budget Committee meeting - Read budget message and 
release budget (ORS 294.408 and 294.426) 

Budget Committee May 7

Additional Budget Committee meetings (ORS 294.428) Budget Committee week of May 14
Budget Committee approves budget (ORS 294.428) Budget Committee week of May 14
Public hearing; adopt budget; levy taxes (ORS 294.456) City Council June 4

Color Guide
Council 
Budget Committee
Management team
City Administrator or Finance


	Text1: Budget Committee 
	Check Box2: Yes
	Check Box3: 
	Text3: Paige Hook 
	Text4: 2088 Quail Run Ave
	Text5: N/A
	Text6: Mrs.paigehook@gmail.com
	Text7: 503-507-4704
	Text8: Executive Assistant 
	Text9: State of Oregon 
	Text10: 500 Summer St NE, Salem, OR
	Text11: 503-793-2533
	Text12: Paige.k.hook@state.or.us
	Text13: I have a bachelors degree, experience in managing projects, and have training in crime analysis which takes a high level of analytical skill. I also have experience in keeping meetings moving forward. I have managed our household budget for 8 years. 
	Text2: 5
	Text14: I want to become a member of this committee, because I care about our community, and want to be a part of the discussion on where our funds go. I want to help advocate for all citizens and make sure processes aren't rushed, yet topics are kept moving to respect each member's time. I want to take the time when needed to ask some or all of the following questions:
Why are we spending this?
Is there a way to reduce the cost?
Is it necessary?
Is it fair? 
Is it a good use of public funds?
What precedent might we be setting? 
What else could this money be allocated for?
	Check Box4: 
	Check Box5: 
	6: Yes
	Text17: I am not.
	Text16: I do not have any specific experience in budget-related groups, but I am an active Rotarian, and am currently managing a nonpartisan campaign in a neighboring city. 
	Text15: City funds belong to the citizens, and the city is entrusted with those funds. I would like to be sure we are addressing the previous questions stated in #2 wherever possible to ensure we are managing the budget in the best way we can. 
	Text18: I do not believe so. I do work for the state of Oregon, but it is not in a section that deals with finance and budget. I work for the health authority. 
	Text19: 1/18/2018


